
Finance Committee

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority

2817 Canal Street
New Orleans, LA 70119

Meeting Agenda - Final

RTA Board Room11:00 AMThursday, February 12, 2026

The New Orleans Regional Transit Authority (RTA) Board of Commissioners will hold 
an in-person public meeting on Thursday, February 12, 2026, at 9:00 a.m. The meeting 
will begin at the scheduled time but may be delayed until a quorum is present and will 
be live streamed on the RTA website; masks are optional. Written public comments on 
agenda items may be submitted by completing a speaker card on the day of the 
meeting, by email to rtaboard@rtaforward.org prior to the meeting, or by U.S. mail to 
RTA, Office of Board Affairs, 2817 Canal Street, New Orleans, LA 70119. This meeting 
is accessible to persons with disabilities, and accommodation requests must be made 
at least 72 hours in advance by contacting the Office of Board Affairs at 504-827-8341 
or rtaboard@rtaforward.org.

1. Call To Order

2. Roll Call

3. Consideration of Meeting Minutes

[01.08.26 Fin Minutes] 26-030

4. Committee Chairman's Report

5. Chief Executive Officer's Report

6. Chief Financial Officer's Report

7. DBE Report

8. Chief Planning and Capital Project Officer's Report

9. Procurements

A. Authorizations:

Page 1 of 2 

1

https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3168


Finance Committee Meeting Agenda - Final February 12, 2026

Contract Award for Vehicle Fluids and Lubricants 25-174

RTA1 Drydocking and Maintenance Contract Award 26-020

B. Amendments:

Change Order for Transit Security Services - SEAL 26-026

10. New Business

11. Audience Questions & Comments

12. Adjournment

Page 2 of 2 

2

https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3132
https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3158
https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3164


New Orleans Regional Transit Authority

Board Report and Staff Summary

2817 Canal Street
New Orleans, LA 70119

File #: 26-030 Finance Committee

[01.08.26 Fin Minutes]

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™ 3

http://www.legistar.com/


New Orleans Regional Transit Authority
Finance Committee

2817 Canal Street
New Orleans, LA 70119

Meeting Minutes - Draft

RTA Board RoomThursday, January 8, 2026 11:00 AM

The New Orleans Regional Transit Authority (RTA) Board of Commissioners will hold 
an in-person public meeting on Thursday, January 8, 2026, at 11:00 am. The meeting 
will begin at the scheduled time but may be delayed until a quorum is present and will 
be live streamed on the RTA website; masks are optional. Written public comments on 
agenda items may be submitted by 1) completing a speaker card on the day of the 
meeting; 2) email to rtaboard@rtaforward.org prior to the meeting; 3) U.S. mail to RTA, 
Office of Board Affairs, 2817 Canal Street, New Orleans, LA 70119. This meeting is 
accessible to persons with disabilities, and accommodation requests must be made at 
least 72 hours in advance by contacting the Office of Board Affairs at 504-827-8341 or 
rtaboard@rtaforward.org.

1. Call To Order

2. Roll Call

Commissioners Present: Commissioner Colin and Commissioner Walton

Commissioner Absent:  Commissioner Moore

Commissioner Also Present:  Commissioner Guidry

3. Consideration of Meeting Minutes

Commissioner Colin moved and Commissioner Walton seconded to approve the Finance 
Committee Meeting Minutes of December 11, 2026.  The motion was approved unanimously.

[12.11.25 Finance Meeting Minutes] 26-005

4. Committee Chairman's Report

Commissioner Walton thanked the Finance Team for doing a great job with the 2026 Budget.

Page 1 of 3

4

https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3143


Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft January 8, 2026

5. Chief Executive Officer's Report

The monthly Chief Executive Officer's Report was given and can be found in the PowerPoint 
Presentation for the Finance Committee Meeting. 

Algiers Service Improvement
A Community Meeting will be held on January 24, 2026, from 2:00pm-4:00pm at the Algiers 
Regional Library and the residents in the Cut-Off in Algiers are aware of this community 
meeting.
 
New Electric Buses
The New Electric Buses has arrived, and they are in the bus bays in the Maintenance Facility.

Automatic Tamping Machine  
This new Tamping Machine is housed at Carrollton Station and will make the realigning of the 
tracks much easier for the maintenance crew.  Staff is working on modernizing as many tools 
as possible.

Disruption Communication Plan 
This Plan was given at the Operations and Administrative Meeting.

6. Chief Financial Officer's Report

The monthly Chief Financial Officer's Report was given and can be found in the PowerPoint 
Presentation for the Finance Committee Meeting. 

The KPI's shows all the information regarding Farebox Recovery.  Historically the Farebox 
Recovery has been between 20-30%.

The 2024 Audit Balance Sheets show the monies being spent on Capital Improvements 
Projects

7. DBE Report

The monthly DEB Report was given and can be found in the PowerPoint Presentation for the 
Finance Committee Meeting. 

The DBE training was published monthly and held on the 4th Tuesday of each month. The 
Marketing Department advertises these training courses on the RTA website.

8. Chief Planning and Capital Project Officer's Report

The monthly Chief Planning and Capital Project Officer's Report was given and can be found 
in the PowerPoint Presentation for the Finance Committee Meeting. 

Staff has received bids on The Downtown Transit Center and the Major Hubs Projects. 

The Downtown Center will be located on Canal and Basin and give passengers the amenities 

Page 2 of 3

5



Finance Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft January 8, 2026

that they deserve as transit riders.  The riders need to be kept informed on how these projects 
will make the riders experience much better.

The quality of the rider's experience is something that the riders can express to the public and 
this would be very beneficial to the agency.

9. Items Requiring Committee Action

Contract Award for Paratransit Software Services 25-165

Commissioner Walton moved and Commissioner Colin seconded to remove this 
item from the Consent Agenda and placed this item on the Board Agenda as a 
regular Procurement Item for award so that the entire Board can have an input .  
The motion was approved unanimously.

Enactment No: 26-006

Extension of CEA for Janitorial Services 25-175

This is a 3-year extension to the original contract and included in the contract is 
an annual allowance for certain maintenance that is not included in the contract .  
All the RTA contracts have a clause that states "Termination Due to Cause".

Commissioner Walton moved and Commissioner Colin seconded to approve the 
Extension of the CEA for Janitorial Services.  The motion was approved 
unanimously.

Enactment No: 26-002

10. New Business

None.

11. Audience Questions & Comments

Jim Goodwin stated that there is a bus shelter in Algiers Point on the corner of Opelousas and 
Verret Street that is not being used and should be moved to service passengers at another 
location.

12. Adjournment

Commissioner Colin moved and Commissioner Walton seconded to adjourn the Finance 
Committee Meeting of January 8, 2026.  The motion was approved unanimously.

[01.08.26 Finance Committee] 26-013

Page 3 of 3

6

https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3123
https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3133
https://norta.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3151


New Orleans Regional Transit Authority

Board Report and Staff Summary

2817 Canal Street
New Orleans, LA 70119

File #: 25-174 Finance Committee

Contract Award for Vehicle Fluids and Lubricants

DESCRIPTION: Vehicle Fluids and Lubricants - Gulf Coast Oil AGENDA NO: Click or tap here to
enter text.

ACTION REQUEST: ☒ Approval ☐  Review Comment ☐ Information Only ☐ Other

RECOMMENDATION:

To authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute a new four (4) year contract with Gulf Coast Oil &
Supply, LLC, inclusive of (1) one-year option periods, for the supply of oil and fluids necessary to
support fleet maintenance and operational continuity at a cost not to exceed $1,039,591.37.

ISSUE/BACKGROUND:

The agency requires a reliable and consistent supply of oil and fluids to maintain its bus, paratransit,
and rail fleets. These materials are critical to ensuring vehicle performance, compliance with
manufacturer warranty requirements, and adherence to applicable regulatory and safety standards.
Continuity of supply and consistent product quality are essential to avoid service disruptions and
increased maintenance risks.

DISCUSSION:

Establishing a four-year contract with an optional one-year extensions provides several operational
and financial benefits. This contract structure offers pricing stability over a multi-year period,
supporting accurate budget forecasting and cost control. It also reduces administrative burden by
limiting the frequency of procurement actions, allowing staff to focus on core operational priorities.

Additionally, a longer-term agreement promotes supplier commitment and consistency in product
quality, which is vital to maintaining fleet reliability and protecting vehicle warranties. The optional
renewal years provide the agency with flexibility to extend the contract based on supplier
performance, pricing, and prevailing market conditions, ensuring continued value and accountability.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Funding for this contract will be allocated across the appropriate operating capital accounts as
follows; Bus Account Code: 01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 in the amount of
$998,902.80; Paratransit Account Code: 01-4500-06-8070-031-05-00-00000-00000 in the amount
of $16,986.06; Rail Account Code: 01-4300-99-8070-031-03-00-00000-00000 in the amount of
$23,702.52. For the total project cost of $1,039,591.37.

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™
7

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 25-174 Finance Committee

NEXT STEPS:

Upon Board approval, staff will issue a notice to proceed with Gulf Coast Oil & Supply, LLC and
initiate services.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution

2. Solicitation Request ID# 263

3. Bid Invitation (IFB) 2025-036

4. Bid (IFB) 2025-036 Tally

5. Projected Cost

Prepared By: Alger Pennaman
Title: Fleet Manager

Reviewed By: Ryan Moser
Title: Chief Asset Management Officer

Reviewed By: Gizelle Banks
Title: Chief Financial Officer

1/30/2026

Lona Edwards Hankins Date
Chief Executive Officer

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™ 8

http://www.legistar.com/


 

Regional Transit Authority 
2817 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119-6301 
 

504.827.8300 
 

www.norta.com 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  

FILE ID NO. 25-174 

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

PARISH OF ORLEANS 
 

AUTHORIZATION TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO GULF COAST OIL & SUPPLY LLC, 

FOR VEHICLE FLUIDS AND LUBRICANTS  

 
 Introduced by Commissioner _________________________________________, 

seconded by Commissioner ____________________________. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Regional Transit Authority (RTA) 

previously authorized staff to solicit bids for Vehicle Fluids and Lube. 

WHEREAS, the staff issued an Invitation for Bid Solicitation (IFB) 2025-036 for the 

acquisition of vehicle fluids and lube, for four-year contract with an optional one-year extension.   

WHEREAS, six (6) bids were received and one (1) bid was disqualified for not bidding on 

all proposed items after staff reviewed the bids in accordance with requirements prescribed by 

the RTA, Louisiana Public Bid Law, and the Federal Transit Administration; and 

WHEREAS, the staff held a public bid opening and Gulf Coast Oil & Supply was 

determined responsive after completion of a price element review submitted in its bid which met 

the requirements of the RTA, FTA and all state and local guidelines; and 

WHEREAS, staff evaluated all cost components submitted by vendor and determined the 

price to be fair and reasonable; and  

WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the RTA Board of Commissioners that securing this 

contract for the supply of oil and fluids is necessary to support fleet maintenance and operational 

continuity; and 

 

RESOLUTION NO. __________ 
Page 2 

9

http://www.norta.com/


 

Regional Transit Authority 
2817 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119-6301 
 

504.827.8300 
 

www.norta.com 
 

 

WHEREAS, funding for this contract will be allocated across the appropriate operating 

capital accounts as follows; Bus Account Code: 01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 in 

the amount of $998,902.80; Paratransit Account Code: 01-4500-06-8070-031-05-00-00000-

00000 in the amount of $16,986.06; Rail Account Code: 01-4300-99-8070-031-03-00-00000-

00000 in the amount of $23,702.52 for the total project cost NOT TO EXCEED ONE MILLION 

THIRTY-NINE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED NINTY ONE DOLLARS AND THIRTY-SEVEN 

CENTS ($1,039,591.37).  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the RTA that 

the Chairman of the Board, or his designee, is authorized to execute a contract with Gulf Coast 

Oil & Supply, LLC for vehicle fluids and lubricants.  

 THE FOREGOING WAS READ IN FULL, THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON THE 

ADOPTION THEREOF AND RESULTED AS FOLLOWS: 

YEAS:  

NAYS:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:  

 
 AND THE RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED ON THE _ 24   _ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2026.  

 
FRED A. NEAL, JR.  

CHAIRMAN 
RTA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

10

http://www.norta.com/


 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  1 

 

Regional Transit Authority 

Solicitation Request Routing Sheet 

 
INSTRUCTION: The user department is responsible for providing all information requested below and securing the requisite 

signatures.  

Solicitation ID 263 

ProjectSchedule Delivery Date January 1, 2026 

Technical Specs attached No 

Scope of Work attached Yes 

 

A. I have reviewed this form and the attachments provided and by signing below I give authority to the below stated 

Department Representative to proceed as lead in the procurement process. 

Name:  WASHINGTON, AMANDA 

Title: ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST OPERATIONS 

Ext:  8480 

B. Name of Project, Service or Product:  

 Oil and Fluids for all modes 

C. Justification of Procurement:  

To ensure reliable fleet maintenance and operational continuity, the transit agency requests a two-year contract with two 

one-year option periods for the supply of oil and fluids. This structure provides pricing stability, supports budget forecasting, 

and reduces administrative burden by minimizing the frequency of procurement actions. It also promotes supplier 

commitment and consistent product quality, which are essential for vehicle performance, warranty compliance, and 

regulatory standards. The optional years offer flexibility to extend the contract based on supplier performance and market 

conditions. 

 

Bus Account Code:   01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 

 

Para Account Code:  01-4500-06-8070-031-05-00-00000-00000 

 

Rail Account Code:  01-4300-99-8070-031-03-00-00000-00000 

D. Certification of Authorized Grant:  

Is this item/specification consistent with the Authorized Grant?  

   

Director Grants / 

Federal Compliance 

 

Signature  

Date  

    

E. Information Technology:   

IT Dept Head Sterlin J Stevens 

Signature Sterlin J Stevens 
Date 9/3/2025 5:05 PM 

11



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  2 

 

       

       

F. Safety, Security and Emergency Management: Include Standard Safety Provisions Only:  

Additional Safety Requirements Attached:  

Chief  Michael J Smith 

Signature Michael J Smith 

Date September 02 2025 

   

 

G. Risk Management:  

Include Standard Insurance Provisions Only?   

No 

Include Additional Insurance Requirements Attached ? 

  

Risk Management Analyst Marc L Popkin 

Signature Marc L Popkin 

Date September 03 2025 

 

H. Funding Source:  

Funds are specifically allocated in the Department’s current fiscal year budget or in a grant to cover this expenditure as 

follows:   

Multiple Years allocation if required: 

Year Amount Budget Code 

Year-1 $402,963.33 01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 

Year-2 $443,259.66 01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 

Year-3   

Year-4   

Year-5   

Total all years $846,222.99  

 

Independent Cost Estimate (ICE):  $846,222.99 

Projected Total Cost:             $846,222.99 

Funding Type:            Local  

Grants or Capital Project ID:           

 

Federal Funding State Local Other 

  $846,222.99  

Projected Fed Cost State Local Other 

  $846,222.99  

 

FTA Grant IDs Budget Codes 

 01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 

12



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  3 

 

 01-4300-02-8070-031-01-00-00000-00000 

  

  

  

  

Budget Analyst Erin Ghalayini 

Signature Erin Ghalayini 

Date September 02 2025 

   

I. DBE/SBEGoal: 

% DBE 0 

% Small Business 0 

  

 

Director Small 

Business 

Adonis Charles Expose' 

Signature Adonis Charles Expose' 

Date September 03 2025 

 

DBE/EECompliance 

Manager 

Adonis Charles Expose' 

Signature Adonis Charles Expose' 

Date September 03 2025 

         

J. Authorizations: I have reviewed and approved the final solicitation document.  

Department Head Jacques Robichaux Sr. 

Signature Jacques Robichaux Sr. 

Date August 29 2025 

   

Lagal Chief Tracy L. Tyler 

Signature Tracy L. Tyler 

Date Wednesday, September 10, 2025 

 

Division Chief Ryan Moser 

Signature Ryan Moser 

Date September 02 2025 

 

 

Director of 

Procurement 

Ronald Gerard Baptiste 

Signature Ronald Gerard Baptiste 

Date September 10 2025 

         

 

FOR PROCUREMENT USE ONLY 
Type of Procurement Request: 

IFB - Invitation for BiD 

13



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  4 

 

Invitation for Bid (IFB) This competitive method of awarding contracts is used for procurements of more than $25,000 in value. The 

agency knows exactly what and how many of everything it needs in the contract, as well as when and how the products and services are 

to be delivered. The award is generally based on price. 

Request for Quote (RFQ) This type of solicitation is often used to determine current market pricing. 

Request for Proposal (RFP)This approach to contracting occurs when the agency isn't certain about what it wants and is looking to 

you to develop a solution and cost estimate.   

Sole Source (SS) this procurement can be defined as any contract entered into without a competitive process, based on a justification 

that only one known source exists or that only one single supplier can fulfill the requirements. 

State Contract (SC) this procurement is via a State competitive procurement  
Two-step Procurment - request for qualifications step-one used in the formal process of procuring a product or service,  It is typically 

used as a screening step to establish a pool of vendors that are then qualified, and thus eligible to submit responses to a request for price 

proposal (RFP). In this two-step process, the response to the RFQ will describe the company or individual's general qualifications to 

perform a service or supply a product, and RFP will describe specific details or price proposals. 

 

 

Required if Total Cost above 

$15K 

 

Chief Financial Officer Gizelle Johnson Banks 

Signature Gizelle Johnson Banks 

Date September 10 2025 

 

 

Required if Total Cost above 

$50K 

 

Chief Executive Officer Lona Edwards Hankins 

Signature Lona Edwards Hankins 

Date September 10 2025 

   

14

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Request_for_proposals
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Request_for_proposals


15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



Fluid type Delivery Type Frequincy Price per Unit Yearly useage Cost Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Total

15w-40 Motor oil,  sem-isynthetic Bulk
400-500 gal. every 2 

weeks 7 91,000.00$          91,000.00$    100,100.00$  110,110.00$  121,121.00$  422,331.00$    
5W-30 synthetic motor oil Bulk months 6.5 3,120.00$            3,120.00$      3,432.00$      3,775.20$      4,152.72$      14,479.92$      

(Allison TES 295 Approved) Bulk 3 months 41.25 27,225.00$          27,225.00$    29,947.50$    32,942.25$    36,236.48$    126,351.23$    
85W-140 Gear oil Conventional 55 Gal Drum months 10.34 6,824.40$            6,824.40$      7,506.84$      8,257.52$      9,083.28$      31,672.04$      
85W-90 Gear oil Conventional 55 Gal Drum months 9.55 2,521.20$            2,521.20$      2,773.32$      3,050.65$      3,355.72$      11,700.89$      
Multi purpose chasis grease (or 55 Gal Drum months 26.09 2,152.43$            2,152.43$      2,367.67$      2,604.43$      2,864.88$      9,989.40$        

NUTO H 32 Hyudraulic Oil 5 gal. pail As needed 9 540.00$               540.00$         594.00$         653.40$         718.74$         2,506.14$        
wheel bearings 120 Lbs. Keg months 3.05 4,392.00$            4,392.00$      4,831.20$      5,314.32$      5,845.75$      20,383.27$      

M-DTE 10 Excel 32 non-
conductive 5 gal. Pail As needed 14.85 891.00$               891.00$         980.10$         1,078.11$      1,185.92$      4,135.13$        

M-DTE 10 Excel 15 5 Gal. oail As needed 28.25 1,695.00$            1,695.00$      1,864.50$      2,050.95$      2,256.05$      7,866.50$        
DEF Fluid (2) 330 Tote Refills Every two weeks 1.56 26,769.60$          26,769.60$    27,037.30$    29,741.03$    32,715.13$    116,263.05$    

Antifreeze – HD Extendlid life 
NMOAT Ethyleenglycol based 
mixed with water, ready to use -

34F -265F. With protectants from 
metal corrosion. Bulk

400 gal every 2 
weeks 6.02 62,608.00$          62,608.00$    63,234.08$    69,557.49$    76,513.24$    271,912.80$    

TOTAL Est Per Year 229,738.63$        229,738.63$  244,668.50$  269,135.35$  296,048.89$  1,039,591.37$ 
2 year total 474,407.13$  

72



New Orleans Regional Transit Authority

Board Report and Staff Summary

2817 Canal Street
New Orleans, LA 70119

File #: 26-020 Finance Committee

RTA1 Drydocking and Maintenance Contract Award

DESCRIPTION: Request for Authorization to Award for
Drydocking & Maintenance of the RTA1 Ferry Vessel

AGENDA NO: Click or tap here to
enter text.

ACTION REQUEST: ☒ Approval ☐  Review Comment ☐ Information Only ☐ Other

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to award a contract for Drydock & Maintenance in response to
IFB-25-043 to Hard Rock Marine Services LLC in an amount not to exceed $418,000.00.

ISSUE/BACKGROUND:

The RTA has released a solicitation under IFB 2025-043, seeking drydocking and maintenance for
the RTA1 ferry vessel which serves the Canal Street/Algiers Point ferry route.

DISCUSSION:

RTA is seeking a contractor to provide drydocking and maintenance for the RTA1 ferry vessel which
services the Canal Street/ Algiers Point ferry route as per 46 C.F.R. §176.600, “[a] vessel that is
exposed to salt water not more than three months in any 12-month period since the last examination
must undergo a drydock (“DD”) and an internal structural examination (“ISE”) at least once every five
years. The RTA1 was due to have a drydock completed by no later than November 30, 2025, in
which a bare minimum drydock was completed in order to maintain its valid U.S. Coast Guard
Certificate of Inspection. By doing so, RTA ensured that the RTA1 vessel remained in full compliance
with all required U.S. Coast Guard rules and regulations. To complete the drydock in its entirety,
preventive maintenance must be completed on the following systems: Hydraulic & Mechanical,
Propulsion & Thrusters, Electrical, Pumps & Piping, and Lifesaving and Firefighting systems. RTA
needs to contract a third-party facility, with drydocking capabilities, as RTA lacks the facilities to
perform such tasking.

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Funds for this contract are available from the RTA Budget. Operating Account Numbers: 01-6100-99-
7610-061-07-00-00000-00000

NEXT STEPS:

Upon RTA Board approval staff will execute the contract and purchase order.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Board Resolution

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™ 73

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 26-020 Finance Committee

2. Bid Documentation

3. Administrative Review

4. Procurement Summary

5. Solicitation Routing Sheet

6. Cost Estimate

Prepared By: Roberto Lopez
Title: Director of Marine Operations

Reviewed By: Brian Marshall
Title: Chief Transit Officer

Reviewed By: Gizelle Banks
Title: Chief Financial Officer

2/5/2026

Lona Edwards Hankins Date
Chief Executive Officer

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™ 74

http://www.legistar.com/


     Regional Transit Authority 
     2817 Canal Street   
     New Orleans, LA 70119-6307 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO.   

FILE ID NO.   26-020 

 
STATE OF LOUISIANA 
PARISH OF ORLEANS 
 

 
A RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE CONTRACT WITH HARD ROCK MARINE SERVICES, 

LLC FOR DRYDOCKING AND  

MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR THE RTA FERRY VESSEL  

 

 
Introduced by Commissioner _____________, seconded by Commissioner 

_____________________.  
 

WHEREAS, the Regional Transit Authority (RTA) has issued a solicitation under 

IFB 2025-043 to procure drydocking and maintenance services for the RTA1 ferry vessel, 

which serves the Canal Street/ Algiers Point route, and, 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 46 C.F.R. §176.600, Cost Guard requires that a vessel 

exposed to saltwater not more than three months in any 12-month period since the last 

examination undergo a drydock (DD) and internal structural examination (ISE) at least once 

every five years, and, 

 

WHEREAS, the next drydock and internal structure examination for the R T A 1  

w a s  due by November 30, 2025, necessitating the engagement of a third-party facility with 

drydock capabilities, as RTA lacks the infrastructure to perform such tasks, and 

 

WHEREAS, funds for this contract have been allocated within the RTA Budget, with 

the following operating account number: 01-6100-99-7610-061-07-00-00000-00000.  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Regional 

Transit Authority (RTA) that the Chairman of the Board, or his designee, is authorized to 

award a contract to Hard Rock Marine Service LLC in the amount NOT TO EXCEED 

$418,000.00. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



Resolution No. _______                    
Page 2 

      

 

 

 THE FOREGOING WAS READ IN FULL, THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON THE 

ADOPTION THEREOF AND RESULTED AS FOLLOWS: 

 

     YEAS: ___________ 

     NAYS: ___________ 

     ABSTAIN: ___________ 

     ABSENT: ___________ 

 

 AND THE RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED ON THE __th DAY OF MONTH, YEAR.  

 

 

 

__________________________ 

FRED A. NEAL, JR.   

CHAIRMAN 

RTA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

76



77



78



2025-043

79



80



81



82



2025-043

83



84



85



86



Regional Transit Authority 
Administrative Review Form 

Project Name:  Dry Dock Maintenance  

Type of Solicitation:  IFB 2025-043__  DBE/SBE Participation Goal:  0% Number of Respondents:    2 

Prime, Primary Contact and Phone Number DBE and Non-DBE Subconsultants 
DBE 

Commitment 
Percentage 

Price  
(RFP and ITB ONLY) 

Prime Firm: Bollinger Quick Repair, LLC 
Address: 615 Destrehan Ave. 
                  Harvey, LA  70058 
Andrew St. Germain, Executive Vice President, 
CFO & Certifying Official 
Phone: 504-340-0621  
 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
 

Prime Firm: Hard Rock Marine Service LLC 
Address: 709 Jean Lafitte Blvd. 
                  Lafitte, LA  70067 
Anthony J. Lulich, Jr., President 
Phone:  504-689-7302 
  

 
N/A 

N/A  
 

 

 

*Indicates certified DBE or SLDBE firm that will contribute to the project’s participation goal 

Prime Firm Name 
                             Required Items                              

LA Uniform 
Public Work Bid  

Non Collusion Debarment 
Prime 

Debarment 
Lower 

Restrictions on 
Lobbying 

Buy America 
Compliance 

Participant 
Info 

Affidavit of Fee 
Disposition Addenda 

Bollinger Quick 
Repair, LLC 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y 

Hard Rock Marine 
Service LLC 
 

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y y 

  
 

 
        

Review and verification of the above required forms, the below listed vendor is hereby found responsive to this procurement. 

Vendor Name: __Hard Rock Marine Service, LLC_________. 

Certified by: Name and Title:   Shaun Temple, Contract Administrator 

87



 

 

Procurement Personnel Only 

Prime Firm 
Name 

Bid 
Bond 

Insuran
ce 

Responsivenes
s 

Determination 

Responsible Determination 

   
Certifications 

/Licenses 

     
Facilities

/ 
Personne

l 

SAM.Gov  Previous Experience 

Years in 
Business 

Financial 
Stability LA License 

No.  if 
required 

Bollinger Quick 
Repair, LLC 

 
    
N/A 
 
 

Y N/A N/A Y Y 

 
 

31 
Years 

N/A 

 

   N/A 

Hard Rock 
Marine Service, 
LLC 
 

 
N/A 
 Y N/a N/a  ? Y 

17 
years N/A 

N/A 

  
     

 
  

Review and verification of the above “checked” forms, the below listed vendor is hereby found responsible for award of this procurement. 

Vendor Name: __Hard Rock Marine Service, LLC_______. 

Certified by: Name and Title:  Shaun Temple, Contract Administrator 

88



     

PROCUREMENT SUMMARY-IFB 2025-043 
 
 
REQUIREMENTS  
 
Regional Transit Authority Solicitation Request Routing Sheet with attached technical specifications was 
received by Procurement Deparment to Solicit RTA 1 Dry Dock  
 
There was a  no DBE goal established for this solicitation per the RTA Routing Sheet. 
 
Procurement Policy: 
 
The Independent Cost Estimate for this procurement is $ 491,316.04 which exceeds the Small 
Purchase threshold of $ 25,000.00 therefore in compliance with the Regional Transit Authority of New 
Orleans Procurement Policies and Procedures Manual, Section VII.B. This procurement shall be 
conducted through formal advertisement (competitive means). 
 
Procurement Method: 
More than one responsive and responsible offeror can meet the solicitation requirements. Specifications 
furnished by the user department are complete, adesxquate, precise and realistic. No discussions or 
negotiations will be needed to address technical requirements, award will be made on lowest 
responsible/responsive bidder. Therefore, the IFB method of solicitation is selected as the method of 
procurement. 
 
SOLICITATION 
Invitation for Bids (IFB) No. 2025-043 Public Notice was published in the The Advocate. The Public 
Notice and the IFB 2025-043 were posted on the RTA website beginning November 7, 2025. The IFB 
submittal deadline was 12/9/2025 at 2:00pm.  
 
IFB SUBMITTAL 
Bid Opening was held on December 9, 2025 at 2:00pm.  
 
  
DETERMINATION 
There were  ( 2 ) bids were received and one was determined responsive and provided all required 
certifications.  
 
SUBMITTAL ANALYSIS 
Respondents       Pricing 
 
Hard Rock Marine Service, LLC     $418,000.00 
 
Bollinger Quick Repair, LLC     $773,379.00 
 
 
Price determined fair and reasonable based on competition. 
 
SUMMARY 
Based on the information above the bids received were prepared and sent to Procurement Department 
for further review. An Administrative Review Form was prepared by Shaun Temple, Contract 
Administrator..   
 
Procurement department: Recommend award be made to lowest responsive/responsible bidder, to  
Hard Rock Marine Service, LLC. Recommendation submitted to January 2026 Board of Commissioners 
for approval.  

89



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  1 

 

Regional Transit Authority 

Solicitation Request Routing Sheet 

 
INSTRUCTION: The user department is responsible for providing all information requested below and securing the requisite 

signatures.  

Solicitation ID 270 

ProjectSchedule Delivery Date November 30, 2025 

Technical Specs attached Yes 

Scope of Work attached Yes 

 

A. I have reviewed this form and the attachments provided and by signing below I give authority to the below stated 

Department Representative to proceed as lead in the procurement process. 

Name:  LOPEZ, ROBERTO 

Title: DIRECTOR OF MARINE OPERATIONS 

Ext:  8475 

B. Name of Project, Service or Product:  

 RTA1 Drydock 

C. Justification of Procurement:  

Regulatory Requirement: 

Pursuant to 46 C.F.R. §176.600, “[a] vessel that is exposed to salt water not more than three months in any 12-month period 

since the last examination must undergo a drydock (“DD”) and an internal structural examination (“ISE”) at least once 

every five years.” RTA 1’s next DD and ISE must be completed by November 30, 2025 (see attached Certificate of Inspection). 

 

Purpose of Procurement: 

The New Orleans Regional Transit Authority (RTA) seeks to procure a qualified contractor to perform drydock and 

associated maintenance services for the RTA 1 passenger ferry in compliance with USCG regulations. RTA does not possess 

in-house facilities to perform the drydock, thus necessitating third-party services. 

 

Scope of Work: 

The required scope includes, but is not limited to: 

 

Haul-out and drydock services 

 

Hull inspection and cleaning 

 

USCG-mandated structural inspections 

 

Maintenance and upgrades to propulsion, steering, generator, fire suppression, navigation, and alarm systems 

 

Inspections and replacements of key marine components 

 

Coordination of required inspections with USCG officials 

 

A detailed scope of work is provided in the attached documentation. 

90



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  2 

 

 

Contractor Responsibility: 

All bidders must be capable of providing a turn-key solution for the full scope of work as defined. Bidders may subcontract 

portions of the scope; however, the prime contractor is solely responsible for the performance, coordination, and delivery of 

all work, including that of any subcontractors. Failure to perform any portion of the scope will be deemed a failure to meet 

contract requirements. 

 

Deliverables 

 

Drydock inspection report 

 

As-built drawings or updates for all replaced systems 

 

Equipment manuals and warranties 

 

Final invoice with itemized cost breakdown 

 

Timeline 

Contractor to provide milestone schedule with bid submission 

 

Payment Terms 

Milestone-based payments as negotiated 

 

 

 

Bidders must: 

 

Clearly identify any subcontracted components 

 

Ensure compliance with all federal, state, and maritime regulatory standards 

 

Conclusion: 

The selected contractor will be required to perform all aspects of the drydock and maintenance scope, whether through in-

house resources or through their own subcontracting arrangements. RTA will issue a firm, fixed-price contract, and the 

awarded vendor must ensure full compliance with contract requirements and completion timelines to maintain vessel 

certification. 

D. Certification of Authorized Grant:  

Is this item/specification consistent with the Authorized Grant?  

   

Director Grants / 

Federal Compliance 

 

Signature  

Date  

    

E. Information Technology:   

IT Dept Head Sterlin J Stevens 

91



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  3 

 

Signature Sterlin J Stevens 
Date 10/7/2025 8:42 PM 

       

       

F. Safety, Security and Emergency Management: Include Standard Safety Provisions Only:  

Additional Safety Requirements Attached:  

Chief  Michael J Smith 

Signature Michael J Smith 

Date October 07 2025 

   

 

G. Risk Management:  

Include Standard Insurance Provisions Only?   

No 

Include Additional Insurance Requirements Attached ? 

  

Risk Management Analyst Marc L Popkin 

Signature Marc L Popkin 

Date October 07 2025 

 

H. Funding Source:  

Funds are specifically allocated in the Department’s current fiscal year budget or in a grant to cover this expenditure as 

follows:   

Multiple Years allocation if required: 

Year Amount Budget Code 

Year-1  01-6100-99-7610-061-07-00-00000-00000 

Year-2   

Year-3   

Year-4   

Year-5   

Total all years   

 

Independent Cost Estimate (ICE):  $491,316.04 

Projected Total Cost:             $491,316.04 

Funding Type:            Local  

Grants or Capital Project ID:           

 

Federal Funding State Local Other 

  $491,316.04  

Projected Fed Cost State Local Other 

  $491,316.04  

 

92



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  4 

 

FTA Grant IDs Budget Codes 

 01-6100-99-7610-061-07-00-00000-00000 

  

  

  

  

  

Budget Analyst Erin Ghalayini 

Signature Erin Ghalayini 

Date October 02 2025 

   

I. DBE/SBEGoal: 

% DBE 0 

% Small Business 0 

  

 

Director Small 

Business 

Adonis Charles Expose' 

Signature Adonis Charles Expose' 

Date October 07 2025 

 

DBE/EECompliance 

Manager 

Adonis Charles Expose' 

Signature Adonis Charles Expose' 

Date October 07 2025 

         

J. Authorizations: I have reviewed and approved the final solicitation document.  

Department Head Roberto Lopez 

Signature Roberto Lopez 

Date October 01 2025 

   

Lagal Chief Tracy L. Tyler 

Signature Tracy L. Tyler 

Date Friday, October 10, 2025 

 

Division Chief Brian Richard Marshall 

Signature Brian Richard Marshall 

Date October 07 2025 

 

 

Director of 

Procurement 

Ronald Gerard Baptiste 

Signature Ronald Gerard Baptiste 

Date October 10 2025 

         

 

FOR PROCUREMENT USE ONLY 

93



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 15)  5 

 

Type of Procurement Request: 

IFB - Invitation for BiD 

Invitation for Bid (IFB) This competitive method of awarding contracts is used for procurements of more than $25,000 in value. The 

agency knows exactly what and how many of everything it needs in the contract, as well as when and how the products and services are 

to be delivered. The award is generally based on price. 

Request for Quote (RFQ) This type of solicitation is often used to determine current market pricing. 

Request for Proposal (RFP)This approach to contracting occurs when the agency isn't certain about what it wants and is looking to 

you to develop a solution and cost estimate.   

Sole Source (SS) this procurement can be defined as any contract entered into without a competitive process, based on a justification 

that only one known source exists or that only one single supplier can fulfill the requirements. 

State Contract (SC) this procurement is via a State competitive procurement  
Two-step Procurment - request for qualifications step-one used in the formal process of procuring a product or service,  It is typically 

used as a screening step to establish a pool of vendors that are then qualified, and thus eligible to submit responses to a request for price 

proposal (RFP). In this two-step process, the response to the RFQ will describe the company or individual's general qualifications to 

perform a service or supply a product, and RFP will describe specific details or price proposals. 

 

 

Required if Total Cost above 

$15K 

 

Chief Financial Officer Gizelle Johnson Banks 

Signature Gizelle Johnson Banks 

Date October 15 2025 

 

 

Required if Total Cost above $50K  

Chief Executive Officer Lona Edwards Hankins 

Signature Lona Edwards Hankins 

Date October 15 2025 

   

94

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Request_for_proposals
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Request_for_proposals


95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



New Orleans Regional Transit Authority

Board Report and Staff Summary

2817 Canal Street
New Orleans, LA 70119

File #: 26-026 Finance Committee

Change Order for Transit Security Services - SEAL

DESCRIPTION: Amendment to the current SEAL Security
Contract to allow month-to-month services for Transit Security
Services at various New Orleans Regional Transit Authority
locations throughout the City of New Orleans

AGENDA NO: Click or tap here to
enter text.

ACTION REQUEST: ☒ Approval ☐  Review Comment ☐ Information Only ☐ Other

RECOMMENDATION:

Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to amend the current contract with Security Experts and
Leaders (SEAL) to allow RTA to continue Transit Security Services at existing staffing levels on a
month-to-month basis until April 30, 2026, not to exceed $263,083.

ISSUE/BACKGROUND:

Several recent attempts to select and award contracts to vendors to provide Transit Security
Services, culminating in RFP #2023-001, were each formally protested, and consequently cancelled.
In order to maintain the necessary security coverage for the RTA system, staff recommended, and
the Board of Commissioners approved entering into a contractual agreement with SEAL to receive
services on a month-to-month basis, with the intention of researching and reviewing options for the
agency to consider, ranging from continuing to outsource services to bringing the functions in-house.
Staff have developed a comprehensive Scope of Work (SOW) and are currently in the process of
selecting a security provider through RFP # 2025-031. Staff is seeking an additional change order to
maintain security services with the current vendor. Staff is requesting an extension of the current
services (at existing levels) through April 30, 2026.

DISCUSSION:

Maintaining a secure transit environment is one of RTA's top priorities. RTA chose SEAL Security to
provide armed, uniform security personnel to aid in securing all property owned, leased, operated,
and/or maintained by RTA (i.e., facilities, and vehicles). SEAL is expected to assist employees,
contractors, patrons, and the citizens of New Orleans and surrounding parishes by maintaining order,
providing excellent customer service, and rendering assistance as needed. SEAL works closely with
local, state, and federal emergency response agencies always rendering aid as needed. This
contract will be amended while waiting for a new contract to be approved.

The security services under this contract include security coverage for transit facilities, assets, and
areas designated for Transit Operations. This service is required 24 hours a day, 365 days a year to
maintain a safe and secure transit system.

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™135

http://www.legistar.com/


File #: 26-026 Finance Committee

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Funds for this contract are available from the RTA Operational Budget. Operating Account Number:
01-3300-99-7650-161-00-00-00000-00000. SEAL will invoice the agency $263,083 (estimated funds
needed for services through April 30, 2026). The total cost for the extension is not to exceed
$263,083.

NEXT STEPS:

Upon RTA Board approval, staff will submit and process a change order modification to the purchase
order.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution

2. Independent Cost Estimate Summary Form (ICE)

3. Change Order Routing Sheet

4. Change Order Justification

5. Original SEAL Purchase Order

6. Recent SEAL Purchase Order

Prepared By: Ivana C. Butler
Title: Administrative Analyst Safety, Security, and Emergency Management

Reviewed By: Michael J. Smith
Title: Chief Safety, Security, and Emergency Management Officer

Reviewed By: Gizelle Johnson Banks
Title: Chief Financial Officer

2/4/2026

Lona Edwards Hankins Date
Chief Executive Officer

New Orleans Regional Transit Authority Printed on 2/6/2026Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™136

http://www.legistar.com/


 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

STATE OF 
LOUISIANA PARISH 
OF ORLEANS 

 
 

AMENDMENT TO THE PREVIOUS SEAL SECURITY CONTRACT TO CONTINUE 
MONTH-TO-MONTH SERVICES FOR TRANSIT SECURITY SERVICES 

 

 

Introduced by Commissioner   , seconded by Commissioner 
 

  . 
 

WHEREAS, the Regional Transit Authority (RTA) executed contract # 2020-009 with 

Security Experts and Leaders (SEAL) for Transit Security Services on September 7th, 2020; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the RTA Board of Commissioners authorized staff to execute a contract with 

Allied Universal Security Corporation through RFP # 2023-001, however the Procurement 

process was formally protested; and 

 

WHEREAS, to maintain Transit Security Services at existing levels, the RTA Board of 

Commissioners authorized staff to extend Transit Security Services with SEAL through a 

series of month-to-month extensions from October 2022 to February 2026; 

 

WHEREAS, SEAL has since been operating on a month-to-month basis; and 

 

WHEREAS, RTA staff have reasonably determined that there is a need to authorize an 

extension of the current month-to-month agreement for the provision of Transit Security 

Services until RTA either secures a new contract or enters into a formal agreement for similar 

services [“coverage”]; and  

 

WHEREAS, the solicitation for Transit Security Services through RFP #2025-31 is currently 

ongoing; and  

 

WHEREAS, RTA staff have determined that extending the current agreement to April 2026 

will allow sufficient time for staff to conduct a thorough review, complete the solicitation 

process, and implement the coverage approach that is best suited to RTA; and  

 

WHEREAS, RTA staff have determined that the extension of Transit Security Services at 

existing levels will cost approximately TWO HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE THOUSAND 137



RESOLUTION NO.    
Page 2  

EIGHTY-THREE DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS ($263,083.00) for this time period; and 

 
WHEREAS, funding is available through RTA Operating Account 01-3300-99-7650-161-

00-00-00000-00000 for a total cost not to exceed TWO HUNDRED SIXTY-THREE 

THOUSAND EIGHTY-THREE DOLLARS AND ZERO CENTS ($263,083.00). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the 

Regional Transit Authority (RTA) that the Chairman of the Board, or his designee, authorize 

the CEO to approve the continuation of transit security services on a month-to-month basis 

provided by Security Experts and Leaders (SEAL). 

 

THE FOREGOING WAS READ IN FULL, THE ROLL WAS CALLED ON THE 

ADOPTION THEREOF AND RESULTED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
YEAS:              

NAYS:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT:    
 

AND THE RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED ON THE  24th  DAY OF FEBRUARY, 
2026. 
 

 

 

FRED NEAL, JR. 

CHAIRMAN 

RTA BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

138



  

Independent Cost Estimate (ICE) 
 

INDEPENDENT COST ESTIMATE SUMMARY FORM 
 

Project Name/Number: 2020-009 

Date of Estimate: 1/29/2026 

Description of Goods/Services:  

 Contract to provide security services, PO #912771 

 
___ New Procurement 
 X   Contract Modification (Change Order) 
___ Exercise of Option 

 
Method of Obtaining Estimate:  
 

Attach additional documentation such as previous pricing, documentation, emails, internet screen shots, 
estimates on letterhead, etc. 

___ Published Price List (attach source and date) 

  X  Historical Pricing (attach copy of documentation from previous PO/Contract) 

___ Comparable Purchases by Other Agencies (attach email correspondence) 
 

___ Engineering or Technical Estimate (attach) 
___ Independent Third-Party Estimate (attach)

        ___ Other (specify) ______________ attach documentation 

        ___ Pre-established pricing resulting from competition (Contract Modification only) 

 

Through the method(s) stated above, it has been determined the estimated 

total cost of the goods/services is $       263,083               

 

The preceding independent cost estimate was prepared by: 

 
Ivana C. Butler 

Name 
 

    Ivana C. Butler 
 

 

Signature 

 
 
 

139



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11647

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-22-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-23-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-24-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-25-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-26-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-27-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security.. 24 Security Officer Admin Front Desk 12-28-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

$3,696.00

$3,696.00

$0.00

1.21.26

140



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11624

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-22-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00
Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-23-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00
Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-24-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00
Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-25-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00
Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-26-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00
Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-27-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00
Canal St Ferry 18.5 Security Officer 12-28-25 05:45 AM 12:15 AM 22.00 407.00

$2,849.00

$2,849.00

$0.00

1.21.26

141



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11648

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Security Officer. 8.25 Security Officer Stationary/Mobile Patrol Money Room
12-22-25 6:30 AM 02:45 PM

22.00 181.50

Security Officer. 8.25 Security Officer Stationary/Mobile Patrol Money Room
12-23-25 6:30 AM 02:45 PM

22.00 181.50

Security Officer. 8.25 Security Officer Stationary/Mobile Patrol Money Room
12-24-25 6:30 AM 02:45 PM

22.00 181.50

**Money Room closed 12-25-25 and 12-26-25**

$544.50

$544.50

$0.00

1.21.26

142



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11625

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-22-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-23-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-24-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-25-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-26-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-27-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Mobile Security 24 Mobile Security Lake Forest Hub 12-28-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

$3,696.00

$3,696.00

$0.00

1.21.26

143



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11628

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-22-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-23-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-24-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-25-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-26-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-27-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer M... 24 Security Officer Loyola Hub 12-28-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

$3,696.00

$3,696.00

$0.00

1.21.26

144



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11646

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-22-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-23-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-24-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-25-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-26-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-27-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer* 24 Security Officer New Orleans East 12-28-25 06:00 AM
06:00 AM

22.00 528.00

$3,696.00

$3,696.00

$0.00

1.21.26

145



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11627

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-22-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-23-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-24-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-25-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-26-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-27-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security Officer . 24 Security Officer Rear Gate 12-28-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

$3,696.00

$3,696.00

$0.00

1.21.26

146



Invoice

Date

12/29/2025

Invoice #

11626

Bill To

Reginonal Transit Authority
Michael J Smith
 Security
2817 Canal ST
 New Orleans, LA 70119

Security Experts and Leaders 1

6600 Plaza Drive
Suite 301
New Orleans, LA 70127

Job Code P.O. No. Terms

Net 30

Due Date

1/28/2026

Thank you for your business.

Phone #

504-248-7174

E-mail

thesealgroup@sealsecuritygroup.com

Web Site

www.sealsecuritygroup.com

Total

Balance Due

Payments/Credits

Service Hours Description Rate Amount

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-22-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-23-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-24-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-25-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-26-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-27-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

Security .. 24 Security Officer Willow Barn 12-28-25 06:00 AM 06:00
AM

22.00 528.00

$3,696.00

$3,696.00

$0.00

1.21.26

147



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 21)  1 

 

Regional Transit Authority 

Change Order Routing Sheet 

 
INSTRUCTION: The user department is responsible for providing the information requested below (all parts), securing the 

requisite signatures, attaching a justification for the change order, and providing a responsibility determination, with pertinent 

contact information.  

Date Created January 29, 2026 

Change Order ID 421 

 

A. Department Representative to participate in procurement process. 

Name:  BUTLER, IVANA 

Title: ADMINISTRATIVE ANALYST PHYSICAL SECURITY 

Ext:  8479 

B. Contract Information:  

Contract Number 2020-009 

PO Number 912771 

Contract Title Contract to Provide Security Services at RTA Facilities 

Contract-History: 

Original Award Value 1008920 

Previously Executed Change Order Value 7804552.72 

Adjusted Contract Value 8813472.72 

Current Change Order Value 263083 

Revised Contract Value 9076555.72 

C. Justification of Change Order  

Security Experts and Leaders (SEAL) will continue to provide transit security services on a month-to-month basis to RTA, 

as was authorized by the Board of Commissioners on June 25, 2024 through Resolution No. 24-036. Staff have developed a 

comprehensive Scope of Work (SOW) and are currently in the process of selecting a security provider through RFP # 2025-

031. Staff is seeking an additional change order to maintain security services with the current vendor. Staff is requesting an 

extension of the current services (at existing levels) through April 30, 2026. 

 

D. Type of Change Request: Administrative 

E. Certification of Authorized Grant:  

Is this item/specification consistent 

with the Authorized Grant?  

 

 

Are there any amendments pending?  

148



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 21)  2 

 

If yes see explanation (attachments are 

in the SharePoint folder for this 

request) 

 

Director of Grants/ Federal Compliance:  

Signature:      

Date:        

 

F. Safety, Security,  And Emergency Management: Include Standard Safety Provisions Only:  

Additional Safety Requirements Attached: false 

Chief:    Michael J Smith 

Signature: Michael J Smith 

Date:  January 30 2026 

 

Risk Management:  

Include Standard Insurance Provisions Only? No 

Include Additional Insurance Requirements Attached ? false 

 

Risk Management Analyst: Marc L Popkin  

Signature:      Marc L Popkin      

Date:        January 30 2026      

 

G. Funding Source:  

Independent Cost Estimate (ICE):  $263,083.00 

Projected Total Cost:             $263,083.00 

Funding Type:            Local 

Federal Funding State Local Other 

  $263,083.00  

Projected Fed Cost State Local Other 

  $263,083.00  

 

FTA Grant IDs Budget Codes 

 01-3300-99-7650-161-00-00-00000-00000 

  

  

  

 

Capital Project Approval if required signature ID#:  

Dir Capital Projects:     

Signature:           

Date:          

 

149



 

Regional Transit Authority (Template 21)  3 

 

Budget Analyst: Erin Ghalayini     

Signature:  Erin Ghalayini  

Date:  January 30 2026 

H. Prime firm’s DBE/SLDBE Commitment (NOTE: The Prime Firm must be notified by the Project Manager that the DBE 

Commitment percentage applies to the Total Contract Value after all amendments and change orders.): 

DBE %  Goal 0 

SLDBE % Goal 0 

SBE % Goal 0 

Director of Small Business Development:  Adonis Charles Expose' 

Signature:     Adonis Charles Expose' 

Date:     January 30 2026 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DBE/EEO Compliance Manager Adonis Charles Expose'   

Signature:    Adonis Charles Expose' 

Date:     January 30 2026 

I. Authorizations: I have reviewed and approved the final solicitation document.  

Department Head: Michael J Smith 

Signature:     Michael J Smith 

Date:       January 29 2026   

_______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Chief:        Michael J Smith 

Signature:       Michael J Smith 

Date:       January 30 2026 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Director of Procurement: Ronald Gerard Baptiste 

Signature:  Ronald Gerard Baptiste   

Date:   January 30 2026 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Required if Total Cost above $15K 

Chief Financial Officer:  Gizelle Johnson Banks 

Signature:  Gizelle Johnson Banks   

Date:   January 30 2026 

 __________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Required if Total Cost above $50K 

Chief Executive Officer: Lona Edwards Hankins 

Signature:  Lona Edwards Hankins   

Date:    2/2/2026 3:00 PM 

150



1/29/2026 

Justification to Extend Transit Security Service with Security 

Experts and Leaders (SEAL) 

 

Explanation 

Security Experts and Leaders (SEAL) will continue to provide transit security services on a month-to-

month basis to RTA, as was authorized by the Board of Commissioners on June 25, 2024 through 

Resolution No. 24-036. Staff have developed a comprehensive Scope of Work (SOW) and are currently in 

the process of selecting a security provider through RFP # 2025-031. Staff is seeking an additional 

change order to maintain security services with the current vendor. Staff is requesting an extension of 

the current services (at existing levels) through April 30, 2026. 

On average, RTA pays $25,872 to SEAL per week for transit security services. This includes all regular 

posts including the Canal Street Ferry Terminal and two 24/7 transit hubs.  

Calculation 

With this service agreement, the projected total cost to continue services at current levels through April 

30, 2026 is approximately $263,083. This is the estimated amount needed for services from March 1, 

2026, through April 30, 2026, at an average rate of $25,872/week for 9 weeks. This includes a 3% 

contingency to help support special events such as festival season, public meetings hosted by RTA, and 

other ad hoc requests for specialized security services. See calculation, below: 

$22/hr rate x 24 hrs per day = $528 per day x 7 days = $3,696 weekly 

$3696 x 7 hubs (Willow Barn, Duncan Plaza, Lake Forest, Admin Front Desk, NOLA East, Rear 

Gate, Money Room) = $25,872 weekly x 9 weeks = $232,848 

In August 2022, Canal Street Ferry Terminal service was added at a rate of $22/hr = 114 hrs per 
week x 9 weeks = 1,026 hours x $22/hr = $22,572 

It is anticipated that additional services will be needed in support of the Mardi Gras service plan, 
in keeping with previous years. This consists of securing Riverfront streetcars that are staged 
overnight at Canal and Convention Center Blvd. and securing RTA facilities during the Endymion 
parade. The actual amount for these services is unknown, but staff are recommending 
continuing with the existing 3% contingency added to the Change Order amount: 
 
$255,420+ 3% ($7,663) ≈ $263,083 
 
Total amount estimated from March 1, 2026, through April 30, 2026 (not to exceed): $263,083 

 

Total requested change order amount not to exceed: $263,083 

151



152



Purchase Order 912771  Change Order 2

Proprietary and Confidential

Order 912771
Order Date 01-OCT-2023

Change Order 2
Change Order Date 06-MAR-2024

 
Revision 2
Ordered 1,105,626.08 USD

Sold To Regional Transit Authority
2817 Canal Street
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70119
 

Supplier SECURITY EXPERTS AND LEADERS
6600 PLAZA DRIVE
SUITE 301
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70127

Bill To RTABU
Attn: Accounts Payable
2817 CANAL STREET
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70119
UNITED STATES
 

Ship To 2817 CANAL STREET
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70119
UNITED STATES

Notes USD = US Dollar
 

 

Customer Account Number Supplier Number Payment Terms Freight Terms FOB Shipping Method
8922810 Net 30

Confirm To Deliver To Contact
Briana Howze Briana Howze 

E-mailbhowze@rtaforward.org

Line Item Price Quantity UOM Ordered Taxable

8 Law Enforce./Physical Sec. 1.00 EA

Promised 3.34 EA 3.34

Requested
9/30/23

Requested and Promised Dates correspond to the date of arrival at the Ship-to Location.

Line Total 3.34

12 Private Security Services 1.00 EA

Promised 280 EA 280.00

Requested

2

153



Purchase Order 912771  Change Order 2

Proprietary and Confidential

Line Item Price Quantity UOM Ordered Taxable

9/30/23

Requested and Promised Dates correspond to the date of arrival at the Ship-to Location.

Line Total 280.00

13 Private Security Services 1.00 EA

Promised 330,278.74 EA 330,278.74

Requested
9/30/23

Requested and Promised Dates correspond to the date of arrival at the Ship-to Location.

Line Total 330,278.74

14 Private Security Services 1.00 EA

Promised 15,048 EA 15,048.00

Requested
9/30/23

Requested and Promised Dates correspond to the date of arrival at the Ship-to Location.
Deliver To Contact Shaun Temple

Line Total 15,048.00

16 SEAL Security Services 
Ref. PO 912771

760,016.00

Ship To
Attn: Accounts Payable
2817 CANAL STREET
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70119
UNITED STATES

Promised 760,016.00

Requested
2/28/24

Requested and Promised Dates correspond to the date of arrival at the Ship-to Location.

Deliver To Contact Ivana Butler

Line Total 760,016.00

Total 1,105,626.08

 

3

154



Purchase Order 912771, Change Order 2

Supplier Details:

Company SECURITY EXPERTS AND LEADERS
Contact
Address 6600 PLAZA DRIVE

SUITE 301
NEW ORLEANS, LA 70127

Submit your response to:

Company Regional Transit Authority
Contact Briana Howze
Address 2817 Canal Street

NEW ORLEANS, LA 70119
Phone

Fax
E-mail bhowze@rtaforward.org

This document has important legal consequences. The information contained in this document is proprietary of Regional Transit 
Authority. It shall not be used, reproduced, or disclosed to others without the express and written consent of Regional Transit 
Authority.

This amendment supersedes the agreement 912771 and all its prior modifications. This agreement can be changed only by a signed
agreement between the affected parties.

add additional funds.

The parties hereto have read and executed this contract modification as of the ______day of __________, _______.

1

155


	Meeting Agenda
	 Board Report
	01.08.26 Finance Committee Minutes (DRAFT)
	 Board Report
	Resolution Gulf Coas Oil and Supply
	Gulf Coast Oil and Supply- Solicitation Approval
	GulfCoast Oil and Supply_Bid 2025-036
	Oil and Lubricants Bid Tally
	Gulf Coast Oil & Supply LLC bid Projection
	 Board Report
	Board Resolution for IFB 25-043
	2025-043 RTA 1 Dry Dock_HMS_Bid_12-9-25
	Administrative Review Form IFB 2025-043
	Procurement Summary - IFB 2025-043 RTA 1 Dry Dock
	Solicitaion Routing Sheet
	ICE Form with Attachements
	 Board Report
	Resolution - Transit Security (SEAL) Jan '26
	ICE Form - Jan '26
	SEAL Change Order Routing Sheet Approval - Feb '26
	Justification - SEAL Jan '26
	SEAL Original Purchase Order '21
	SEAL Updated Purchase Order Mar '24



